
E911 Service Board Meeting 
March 8, 2012 

10:00 AM - CESC 
 
 

Members Present: Michael Cline, Chairman Sam Nixon, Jr. 
 John Knapp, Jr. – Co-Chairman Danny Garrison 
 David Von Moll - Comptroller Robert Layman 
 Tracy Hanger Danny Diggs 
 Robert Kemmler Mickey Sims 
 Pat Shumate Ron Mastin 
 Linda Cage  
   
   
Members Absent: D.A. Middleton Denise Smith 
   
Remote Abingdon  Roanoke  
 Culpeper Tidewater 
   
Staff Present: Dorothy Spears-Dean, Coordinator Lisa Nicholson, Project Manager 
 Steve Marzolf, ISP Director Lewis Cassada, Project Manager 
 Jerry Simonoff, ESG Director Attorney General’s Office 
 Sam Keys, Regional Coordinator  
 Terry Mayo, Board Administrative Assistant  
   

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Chairman Michael Cline called the meeting to order at10:10AM.  Ms. Dorothy 
Spears-Dean did a roll call to the Regional Facilities.  
 

2. Approval of the Minutes from January 12, 2012 
 
Chairman Michael Cline asked for changes/additions to the January 12, 2012 
minutes.   Lt. Colonel Robert Kemmler made a motion to approve the January 12, 
2012 minutes.  Mr. David Von Moll 2nd the motion for approval.  Mr. John Knapp 
commented that he had a couple of changes to the minutes.  One change was that 
it is not reflected in the minutes that the Board did a roll call vote before coming 
out of the “Closed Session” certifying that the Board did not discuss any other 
items other than the item approved by Counsel in “Closed Session.”  The other 
correction to the minutes is that there are two typos on page two under item #3.  
There was a period left off, and the word premier was used instead of primer.   
Mr. Cline then called for a vote to approve the January 12, 2012 minutes with the 
three corrections or modifications to the minutes.  A vote was taken, and all 
approved the minutes with the noted corrections; 13-0-0.  
 

3. Completion of NG9-1-1 Implementation Plan 
 



Ms. Spears-Dean addressed the Board and said that at the January Board meeting she 
gave a briefing of the NG911 Implementation Plan.  Ms. Spears-Dean did not go over the 
Plan again, but instead gave an over-view of the changes to the draft plan.  Ms. Spears-
Dean informed the Board that staff conducted several outreach activities to gather 
information for the NG9-1-1 Implementation Plan. Several individuals attended multiple 
meetings and also participated in an audio conferencing meeting.  There was an average 
of about 20 participants at each of the PSAP Town Hall meetings which were held in 
Roanoke on February 2nd; Culpeper on February 7; Tidewater on February 9; as well as a 
Virtual meeting on February 14th.  A presentation was also given at the Virginia Chapter 
of APCO Mid-Winter Session on February 6, 2012 which was attended by 85 
participants.  A Conference call with Southwest Virginia PSAPs was held also.  Ms. 
Spears-Dean said that all comments and questions were reviewed by NG911 IAT 
members.  Ms. Spears-Dean said that there was a consensus among NG91-1 IAT 
members for revisions to the Plan.  Ms. Spears-Dean said that the Committee kept 
hearing that more details were needed in the Plan.  Ms. Spears-Dean discussed the 
“Vision Statement” which is the Commonwealth’s Vision.  Also, Ms. Spears-Dean said 
that deliverables are to be completed by September 2012 which includes educational and 
outreach material for stakeholder groups; planning guidelines; governance study and 
governance model; cost study; legislative agenda. The Committee has identified that by 
July 2013 NG91-1 standards and guidelines should be developed, along with NG911 
staffing and training requirements; and Market research study.  The Governance Structure 
and Model study will not be presented at the May meeting.  Ms. Spears-Dean said that 
the legislative and Regulatory Review which includes funding, operations, standards and 
technology; governance and policy; education and awareness; as well as a cost study will 
be completed by September 2012.  Future deliverables such as standards and guidelines 
and Staffing and Training Requirements will be looked at also.  Ms. Spears-Dean said 
that there needs to be a wider audience to participate, and the items are critical.  Also, the 
Committee would like to keep the momentum going with the PSAPs. Ms. Spears-Dean 
said she wanted to let the Board know about the successful progress.   
 
Mr. Cline asked the Board to accept the plan that was presented and asked that the Board 
direct staff to proceed with its implementation. Mr. John Knapp made a motion to accept 
the Plan from the IAT and to direct Board staff to move forward with the action steps 
identified in the Plan.  Mr. David Von Moll 2nd the motion.  Mr. Cline asked Ms. Spears-
Dean if the intention with the legislative activity and the cost structure in the Plan to go to 
the next General Assembly and ask for funding.  Ms. Spears-Dean said that the plan is to 
incorporate recommendation in a legislature agenda to incorporate in the Annual Report.   
The timeline is to complete recommendations in time to include in the Annual Report, 
and to keep the Board informed.  Mr. Steve Marzolf commented to the Board that they 
are talking about substantial changes, and that there are more players in this Plan.  There 
are some detail discussions that will need to be held and he is not sure it will be done by 
the next General Assembly Session.  Mr. John Knapp said it does not appear that 
standards will be set by the time of the next General Assembly Session, and commented 
that the Board needs to take on some of the issues like governance and not leave them to 
the IATs.  Lt. Colonel Robert Kemmler commented that the Board will have to explore 
the “D-Block” and “Broadband” that Congress has just passed.  Ms. Linda Cage asked 
about the goals.  Ms. Spears-Dean said that long term goals cannot be identified right 
now.  Mr. Steve Marzolf said that there are a lot of things in the air, and the Board has 
got to stay connected to all of them.  Mr. Cline said he thinks this plan does identify and 
points to the elements of where the Board needs to go.  Mr. John Knapp thanked the 
members of the IAT and the stakeholders for what they have done to put this Plan 



together.  Mr. Knapp commented that a lot of work has gone into this, and that the Board 
needs to think how they will begin to get answers to these questions.  Mr. Knapp said he 
does not understand or know what the 911 system cost today; however, the Board needs 
to have a very baseline understanding of what it is costing us today.   
 
Mr. Cline called for the motion for approval; all approved 13-0-0. 
 
 
 

4. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

• PSAP Data Validation Process:  Mr. Steve Marzolf addressed the Board and 
said that they do not have much to report, as the deadline for receiving the data is 
set for March 29, 2012.  Mr. Marzolf said that staff has increased to work on this 
process, and there are now four people processing the data instead of one.  Mr. 
Marzolf reached out to the PSAP community, and said that if they have any 
problems or issues, to please contact their Regional Coordinator, Steve Marzolf, 
Dorothy Spears-Dean or Lewis Cassada.  Mr. Marzolf informed the Board that 
staff is working on some training for the Regional Areas on the “Retention 
Requirements” that the Commonwealth requires.  Mr. Marzolf said that staff will 
have completed the validation process maybe by the May meeting; however, 
definitely by the July meeting. 
 
 

• Legislature Update:  Mr. Steve Marzolf addressed the Board and talked about 
the Legislative Bill naming the Commonwealth Interoperability Coordinator as an 
Advisor to the E911 Services Board. Mr. Marzolf informed the Board that Chris 
McIntosh is the Interoperability Coordinator.  Mr. Marzolf also informed the 
Board that Mr. McIntosh is going to be a member of the Grant Committee also, 
which was in place before the Legislative Bill was drafted.  Mr. Marzolf informed 
the Board that this Legislative Bill has already passed both houses and will 
become effective July 1, 2012. 
 
Mr. Marzolf informed the Board of the next Bill in their packet which is the 
Board’s Bill to set the deadline for carrier cost recovery to October 1st and to 
permit the Board to carryover any fund balance in support of a cash reserve policy 
to be adopted by the Board.  The bill has passed both Houses of the General 
Assembly and was awaiting the approved from the Governor, which was 
expected.  The Wireless E-911 Fund shall be established on the books of the 
Comptroller. Interest earned on moneys in the Wireless E-911 Fund shall remain 
in the E-911 Wireless Fund and be credited to it. Any moneys remaining in the 
Fund, including interest at the end of each fiscal year shall not revert to the 
general fund but shall remain in the E911 Wireless Fund. Except as provided in § 
2.2-2031, moneys in the Fund shall be used for the purposes stated in subsections 
C through D. Expenditures and disbursements from the Fund shall be made by the 
State Treasurer on warrants issued by the Comptroller upon written request signed 
by the Chief Information Officer of the Commonwealth.  This will allow the 



Board to adopt a reserve balance policy.  Mr. Marzolf said that as of July 1, 2012 
the Board will be able to carry a balance forward as a reserve balance policy.   
 
Mr. Marzolf also briefed the Board on the Legislative Bill to shift the distribution 
of the 60% part of the Fund from VITA and the Board to the Department of 
Taxation.  This Bill has taken into account the validation process.  On or before 
July 2017 there will be a recalculation based on “Call Cost.” Mr. Marzolf said 
also that staff will have to continue to do a “True-Up.”  Mr. Marzolf said that this 
negates what the Board voted on previously to recalculate the formula.  It is not 
specified in code as to how the recalculation is to be done, and what data is to be 
collected.  Mr. Marzolf said that this will have to be done at the July Board 
meeting.   
 
Mr. Marzolf directed the Board to an attached spreadsheet that lists the impact of 
the new Legislation (see attachment).  The Bill has been signed by the Governor, 
so July 1, 2012 it will become law.  It impacts those PSAPs that grew rapidly. 
Also, Mr. Marzolf pointed out that the figures will change again because FY2012 
calculations are not reflected on the spreadsheet.  Mr. Marzolf said that the Bill 
does impact the budget, and was an act of the General Assembly.  The Governor’s 
Reform Committee initiated this legislature.  Mr. Cline asked about the coming 
fiscal year, if it will be on the five year average?  Mr. Marzolf said that the 
Department of Taxation will not be able to calculate this until staff closes out 
FY2012, and that the 2012 payments will have to be put in the formula to get the 
average.  Chief Ron Mastin asked about what is expected of the Board, i.e., a 
clarification.  Mr. Marzolf said the Board would have to determine how the Board 
is going to continue to collect the data.  Mr. Knapp commented that the Board 
does not know who and how the data will be collected.  Chief Ron Mastin asked 
about ensuring the same amount will be going to the PSAPs.  Mr. Marzolf said 
that this impacts the 60% only.  A lengthy discussion ensured.  Mr. Marzolf said 
that he has to go back and research the original version of the Bill and the current 
version of the Bill that was passed.   
 
 
 

5. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

• PSAP Grant Committee Member Appointments:  Ms. Spears-Dean addressed 
the Board and said she has two new appointments to the PSAP Grant Committee 
as a result of a vacancy that needs to be filled that was held by Mr. Bill Agee, and 
the other one that was held by Mr. Greg Staylor.  The person selected to fill Mr. 
Agee’s vacant slot will be Ms. Donna Brown.  Ms. Brown’s term will begin 
immediately and expire in 2015.  Ms. Spears-Dean announced that Mr. Jerry 
Smith will replace the slot formally held by Mr. Greg Staylor, as Mr. Staylor’s 
term will expire in June 2012.    
 



 
 

• FY 2013 PSAP Grant Application:  Ms. Spears-Dean addressed the Board and 
said that the City of Newport News requested a grant in the amount of $150,000 
that was not included in the grant recommendations at the last meeting due to staff 
oversight.  The application was received on time, but was  included in another 
grant application.  As a result, it was left off of the funding spreadsheet.  Staff did 
not catch this until the grant awards were bring reviewed.  Staff reviewed the 
application and consulted with the Grant Committee.  Staff is recommending that 
the Board approve this grant.  Chairman Cline called for a motion to approve the 
grant.  Mr. Pat Shumate made a motion to approve the grant, and Mr. David Von 
Moll 2nd the motion for approval.  The grant to award the City of Newport News 
$150,000 for a replacement CAD was approved; 12-0-0 (Lt. Robert Kemmler was 
not present at this vote).   
 
 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT  
Chairman Michael Cline called for public comments at CESC and at the satellite 
locations.  There were no comments. 
 
 
Mr. Marzolf asked about the multi leader trial that was implemented for two 
Board meetings on the recommendation of the Board.  Chairman Cline called for 
a motion to extend the multi-leader audio conferencing for the E911 Services 
Board Meeting.  Mr. John Knapp made a motion to approve the continuation of 
the use of the multi-leader audio conferencing.  Mr. Von Moll 2nd the motion for 
approval.  The Board voted, and the motion passed; 12-0-0 (Lt Robert Kemmler 
was not present for the vote).   
 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT OF THE MEETING 
 
Chairman Michael Cline called for a motion to adjourn the meeting of the E911 
Services Board at11:35PM.  All approved, and the meeting was adjourned. 
 
 

 
 
Respectfully Submitted:  
________________________________________________________ 
     Terry D. Mayo                                                              (Date) 


